
MONDAY, July 17, 2017 
7:00 PM 

2nd Floor Council Chambers 
1095 Duane Street  Astoria OR 97103 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. PROCLAMATION
a) Bruce Berney Archives Proclamation
b) Proclamation Ebba Wicks Brown Day July 21, 2017
c) Designation of July as Park and Recreation Month

4. REPORTS OF COUNCILORS

5. CHANGES TO AGENDA

6. CONSENT
The items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be adopted by one
motion unless a member of the City Council requests to have any item considered separately.
Members of the community may have an item removed if they contact the City Manager by
5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.
a) Astoria City Council Work Session Minutes, June 14, 2017
b) Board Minutes: Library Board, May 23, 2017
c) Human Resources Services Contract (Finance)
d) Contract for Tow Services (Police)
e) Lease Agreement with Astoria Regatta Association for use of the East Portion of Heritage Square

(City Manager)

7. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS
All agenda items are open for public comment following deliberation by the City Council.
Rather than asking for public comment after each agenda item, the Mayor asks that audience
members raise their hands if they want to speak to the item and they will be recognized. In
order to respect everyone’s time, comments will be limited to 3 minutes.
a) Salary Resolution Establishing Basic Compensation Plan Cost of Living Wage Adjustments Part-

Time Employees Schedule  F-2 (Finance)
b) Liquor License Application from Samuel McDaniel, Doing Business as Astoria Downtown Market,

Located at 1020 Commercial Street, Suite A, Astoria for a Change of Ownership for an Off-
Premises Sales License. (Finance)

c) Implementing Parks and Recreation Department Funding Scenarios. Public Hearing: Ordinance
Amending Code Section 8.045.2 Increasing Transient Tax; Public Hearing: Ordinance Adopting a
Parks and Recreation Fee (Parks)

8. NEW BUSINESS & MISCELLANEOUS, PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA)
THE MEETINGS ARE ACCESSIBLE TO THE DISABLED.  AN INTERPRETER FOR THE 

HEARING IMPAIRED MAY BE REQUESTED UNDER THE TERMS OF ORS 192.630  
BY CONTACTING THE CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE AT 503-325-5824. 

AGENDA 
 ASTORIA CITY COUNCIL 

Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



CITY OF ASTORIA
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 

July 11, 2017 

M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: ASTORIA CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JULY 17, 2017 

PROCLAMATION 

Item 3(a): Bruce Berney Archives Proclamation 

The Astoria Public Library is the repository of a special collection of items 
currently known as the Astoriana Collection. During the tenure of City 
Librarian Bruce Berney the collection grew to include first edition copies of 
the Lewis & Clark Expedition and Washington Irving’s Astoria. Mayor 
Arline LaMear will proclaim the renaming of the Astoriana Collection to the 
Bruce Berney Archives in honor of his work in the preservation of all things 
Astoria.  

Item 3(b): Proclamation Ebba Wicks Brown Day July 21, 2017 

Local Architect, Ebba Wicks Brown’s contributions to Astoria should be 
celebrated for the pioneering contributions to the history of women in 
architecture, to the development of Northwest Regional style architecture, 
and for her thoughtful design of numerous buildings which highlight that 
Astoria’s architectural history. Mayor Arline LaMear will proclaim July 21, 
2017 as Ebba Wicks Brown Day in Astoria.  

Item 3(c): Designation of July as Park and Recreation Month 

Recognizing the importance of park and recreation facilities Mayor Arline 
LaMear will proclaim the month of July as Park and Recreation Month.  

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Item 5(a):  Astoria City Council Work Session Minutes for June 14, 2017 

The minutes of the City Council Work Session meetings of June 14, 
2017 are enclosed for review. Unless there are any corrections, it is 
recommended that Council approve these minutes. 

Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



x:\data1\julie\manager\agenda\city council\7-17-2017\agenda memo 7-17-2017.doc 

Item 5(b): Board Minutes: Library Board, May 23, 2017 

The minutes of the Library Board on May 23, 2017 are enclosed for 
review. Unless there are any corrections, it is recommended that 
Council approve these minutes. 

Item 5(c): Human Resources Services Contract (Finance) 

The Human Resource (HR) administrative functions of the City have 
been the primary responsibilities of the Director of Finance and 
Administrative Services since 2011.  Higher level services and support 
have been met through a contract with Xenium, a private sector HR 
consulting service company based in Portland.   

Xenium’s service contract remains unchanged at $2,475 per month or 
$29,700 annually.  Funding is contained in the Non-Departmental – 
Unallocated, Professional Services of the General Fund of the 2017-18 
adopted budget.  Collaboration between the Director of Finance and 
Administrative Services with Xenium provides a flexible and dynamic 
model to handle various scenarios related to HR activities.  

Item 5(d): Contract for Tow Services (Police) 

The Police Department contracts for towing services when needed. The 
department has need to have vehicles towed in many circumstances. The 
towing contract also covers any vehicles owned by the City. The most 
recent contract with Classic Towing is expired. The City also maintains a 
non preference tow list that allows for a fair and equitable rotation of tows 
requested by private parties.  

The Police Department issued a request for proposals including a 
proposed contract. This request for proposals was sent to the three local 
tow companies who advertise doing business in the area. Only one vendor 
replied with a proposal. That proposal was from Classic Towing. The 
proposal is an increase in pricing from the contract negotiated in 2014. 
Proposed increases are included in the memo.  

Additionally, the Police Department has requested several financial 
remedies for violations of the contract. The remedies are in place to address 
problems that may arise in some limited cases. The contract has been 
reviewed and approved as to form by City Attorney Henningsgaard.  

It is recommended that council approve the Tow Services Agreement 
with Classic Towing. 

Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



x:\data1\julie\manager\agenda\city council\7-17-2017\agenda memo 7-17-2017.doc 

Item 5(e): Lease Agreement with Astoria Regatta Association for use of the 
East Portion of Heritage Square (City Manager) 

The Astoria Regatta Association is requesting the use of the east 
portion of Heritage Square located at 1153 Duane Street, and the 
closure of 12th Street between Duane and Exchange Streets to 
accommodate Astoria Regatta events.  The time frame for the lease 
would be for Saturday, August 12, 2017, from 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.  It 
is requested that the Heritage Square site be leased for $1.00.  City 
Attorney Henningsgaard has approved the Lease Agreement as to 
form.  It is recommended that Council approve the Lease Agreement 
with the Astoria Regatta Association. 

REGULAR CALENDAR 

Item 6(a): Salary Resolution Establishing Basic Compensation Plan Cost of 
Living Wage Adjustments Part-Time Employees Schedule  F-2 
(Finance) 

The adjustment for Schedule F-2 was not appropriately reflected in the 
Salary Resolution presented at the July 3, 2017 Council Meeting.  This 
resolution contains the updated F-2 Schedule which reflects Oregon 
minimum wage change which is effective July 1, 2017. The proposed 
resolution implements the following change retroactive to July 1, 2017: 

     Part-time Group Adjustments to reflect (Schedules F-2) 
increase due to Oregon minimum wage, 
effective July 1, 2017 

Item 6(b): Liquor License Application from Samuel McDaniel, Doing Business 
as Astoria Downtown Market, Located at 1020 Commercial Street, 
Suite A, Astoria for a Change of Ownership for an Off-Premises Sales 
License. (Finance) 

A liquor license application has been filed by Samuel McDaniel for Astoria 
Downtown Market.  This application is a Change of Ownership for an Off-
Premises Sales License.  The appropriate Departments have reviewed the 
application and it is recommended that Council consider approval of the 
application. 

Item 6(c): Implementing Parks and Recreations Department Funding Scenarios. 
Public Hearing: Ordinance Amending Code Section 8.045.2 
Increasing Transient Tax; Public Hearing: Ordinance Adopting a 
Parks and Recreation Fee (Parks) 

Cuts to the Parks and Recreation Department’s budget combined with 
increases in services has left the Department imbalanced, and unable to 
continue providing for the 310 acres of park land, Aquatic Center, and 

Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



x:\data1\julie\manager\agenda\city council\7-17-2017\agenda memo 7-17-2017.doc 

numerous recreation programs the community has grown to enjoy.  Over 
the past 6 months, City Council has been discussing how to create a more 
sustainable Parks and Recreation department by either reducing services, 
increasing revenue or a combination of both. One scenario discussed was 
the “Life Raft” scenario, which would provide just enough relief to stabilize 
services, while a longer term solution is explored. Included in the memo 
are several options and recommendations to fund the “Life Raft” scenario 
and recommended service reductions if additional funding is not achieved. 

Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Page 1 of 2 City Council Journal of Proceedings 
June 14, 2017 

CITY OF ASTORIA  CITY COUNCIL JOURNAL OF PROCEEDINGS 
City Council Chambers 
June 14, 2017 

A work session of the Astoria Common Council was held at the above place at the hour of 9:00 am. 

Councilors Present: Nemlowill, Jones, Price, Mayor LaMear, and Brownson. 

Councilors Excused: None 

Staff Present: City Manager Estes and Community Development Director Cronin. The meeting is recorded and 
will be transcribed by ABC Transcription Services, Inc.  

ADVANCE ASTORIA 

Director Cronin updated City Council on the Advance Astoria Project, which would be presented to Council for 
formal adoption as an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan on June 19th. He presented the draft Economic 
Development Strategy and asked Councilors to provide feedback. 

Staff shared details about a new residential development project and Council discussed a variety of potential 
development projects throughout Astoria. They discussed the possibility of working with a particular property 
owner to open up land for industrial use. The property contains some warehouses and vacant land and the 
owner is aware that the City would like his property to be developed.  

Director Cronin confirmed for Councilor Brownson that a former Pacific Power substation site and the Astoria 
Ford site were brown fields.  

City Council reviewed and discussed the Vision statement with Staff. Staff explained the intent of the language 
used in the statement and how goals were set. Staff also confirmed that goals would be tracked. 

Staff discussed the possibility of partnering with community organizations to implement a branding strategy. The 
City’s role would be to facilitate a strategy that local business owners could use to promote their services and 
products as being local to Astoria. After some discussion about potential partners, City Council agreed a 
branding strategy that included community partners would be beneficial. 

Council and Staff discussed the concepts that were removed from the Economic Development Strategy by the 
advisory committee. Some of the concepts included outdoor recreation, internet technology, arts and culture, 
and education. Staff explained why each concept had been cut and Council provided the following feedback: 
• Outdoor recreation should be included in the strategy under the section on place making.
• Arts and culture would not provide high wage jobs, but did bring economic development to the community by

adding to the city’s livability. Staff noted that the county was planning an arts and culture initiative.
• Astoria does not have the infrastructure to support internet technology and the City does not have a role in

K-12 education.

Staff confirmed for Council that economic development strategies would be implemented citywide and all 
sections of town would be supported equally. The advisory committee did not focus on Tongue Point because 
the area would need $10 to $20 million in infrastructure improvements before growth could begin and several 
jurisdictions would be involved in any development. Additionally, those jurisdictions could change in the next few 
years if the Port of Astoria chose not to renew their lease.  

The Maritime Strategy was briefly discussed. Staff explained the intent was to encourage supply chains that 
would support maritime industry. Councilor Jones agreed that a strategy for Tongue Point should be omitted for 
now, but discussed again in a year after considering the Coast Guard cutters and the Port’s lease at Tongue 
Point. Staff confirmed for Council that filtration capacity was the biggest limiting factor for seafood processing. 
The advisory committee had agreed logging should not be included in the strategy because most logging 
activities occurred outside city limits and Clatsop Economic Development Resources (CEDR) had already 

Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Page 2 of 2 City Council Journal of Proceedings 
June 14, 2017 

included logging in their countywide strategy. Councilors Brownson and Nemlowill agreed the City should 
support the Port’s expansion of boatyards. 

Director Cronin confirmed he would make edits to the strategy based on the comments made at this work 
session. He would also begin working on the City Council agenda packet for Monday’s meeting. The consultant 
would give a presentation before the public hearing. He believed implementation of the strategy would require 
another work session, possibly in the fall. An annual report to Council would be beneficial for Staff and the City’s 
stakeholders. 

Rezoning and enterprise zones were briefly discussed. Staff explained that the State imposes requirements on 
overwater properties, which make it difficult to support certain businesses. Staff recommended redefining the 
zoning classifications and looking for creative ways to allow for redevelopment opportunities. They shared details 
about past projects that required Staff to get creative or could not be approved because of State laws. Councilor 
Brownson was concerned about the advisory committee’s desire for zoning changes because those changes 
might not align with the City’s goals. Staff noted that implementation of the Riverfront Vision Plan had already 
resolved some zoning issues. 

Director Cronin confirmed for Councilor Jones that Staff was working on a tracking mechanism for potential 
projects and new applications. The information would be published online and Staff would be reconsidering the 
development review processes. 

ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 10:40 am. 

ATTEST: APPROVED: 

Finance Director City Manager 

Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



-1- 

Astoria Library Board Meeting 
Astoria Public Library 

May 23, 2017 
5:30 pm. 

Present: Library Board members Kate Summers, David Oser, and Chris Womack. Staff Library 
Director Jimmy Pearson. 

Excused: Kimberley Chaput and Susan Stein 

Call to Order:  Chair Kate Summers called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm. 

Approval of Agenda:  The agenda was approved as presented. 

Approval of Minutes:  The notes of the April 25, 2017 meeting were approved with the following change: 
• Update on Foundation, second paragraph – “David Oser noted that City Council had not yet

approved funding and he believed the drawings would help the foundation raise funds. David Oser 
noted that the Foundation hoped City Council would approve funding for architectural 
drawings as a result of the presentation.” 

Board Reports:  There were none. 

Library Director’s Report:   
Director Pearson’s report was as follows: 
• Library Facilities – The automatic door was installed on May 15th and he has confirmed that the artist

was okay with the placement of the button. The water fountain will be installed on June 5th and will 
include a bottle filler. Accent walls will be painted back to their original color, the foyer will be repaired, 
and furniture will be repositioned. 

• Library Programs – The Summer Reading Program will begin June 10th. City Council’s work session
has been changed to an informal meeting to discuss the McClure Park Master Plan and the library’s 
presentation. Staff will ask Council to vote on the library renovation. Director Pearson planned to 
coordinate with Kate Summers and Willis Van Dusen prior to the meeting. 

• IT Update – Multimedia components have been ordered and the library will offer Apple TV and
Chromecast. He is talking with iFocus about the possibility of offering Chromebooks. 

• Director’s Activities – The library will close at 4:00 pm on May 30th so Staff can set up for the meeting
with City Council. Historic documents and other items of interest related to the library will be displayed 
at City Hall for the public to view and discuss. On Friday, he met with FFA Architects, who worked on 
City Hall, to learn more about the renovation process and discuss possibilities for the Astoria Library. 
FFA recommended next steps with some general cost estimates. 

Director Pearson explained that once the architectural firm has completed designs, the firm’s participation 
in the process would pause while the Foundation completes their capital campaign. When the fundraising 
is complete, the same firm will begin working on next steps. It is important to use a firm with library 
experience and hire local contractors. Hacker and Associates is also interested in the project. 

Chris Womack asked for update on the proposed library budget for the next fiscal year. Director Pearson 
said the proposed budget shows a $5,500 reduction from the previous year because he does not plan to 
renew Freegal or Mango Languages and staffing expenses will increase by almost one full-time employee 
because he will schedule everyone for 20 hours per week. The Logan Memorial Trust has $872,040 for 
the renovation. Carbon credits total $750,000 and $158,000 has been earmarked for building 
maintenance. The design process will begin after City Council votes. 

Update on ALFA Activities: 
Director Pearson said ALFA’s budget was about $3,300 and their next meeting would be in June. ALFA is 
trying to decide if Phog Bounders should continue because Better World Books is bringing in more 
money. 

Update on Foundation: 

Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



-2- 

David Oser reported that the Foundation received a $15,000 grant from the Oregon Community 
Foundation for capacity building, which brings their bank balance to about $34,000 or $35,000. The 
Foundation still has several outstanding capacity building grant applications. Once City Council makes a 
decision, the Foundation will have a good base to begin fundraising activities. 

Director Pearson confirmed the City Council meeting was scheduled for May 30th at 6:00 pm. He will meet 
with Willis Van Dusen prior to the meeting to finalize the details of the presentation. David Oser is 
prepared to discuss finances. The Board and Staff briefly discussed how City Council’s vote would impact 
fundraising. 

New Business: 
Item 8(a): Election of Officers 

This item was postponed to the June meeting since two board members were absent. 

Old Business: There was none. 

Public Comments:  There were none. 

Items for Next Meeting’s Agenda: Election of Officers and an update on the May 30th City Council 
meeting. Chris Womack noted he would be absent from the next meeting, noting he would nominate Kate 
Summers to serve again as Chair. 

Adjournment:  There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5:57 pm. 

Respectfully submitted, 

________________________________ 
Paula Pinyerd, ABC Transcription Services, Inc. 

Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



ORDINANCE NO. 17 - ___ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CODE SECTION 8.045.2 
PERTAINING TO TRANSIENT ROOM TAX. 

 
THE CITY OF ASTORIA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  Section 8.045.2 is amended to read as follows: 

“8.045.2 Tax imposed.  For the privilege of occupancy in any hotel on or after 
January 1, 2018 each transient shall pay a tax in the amount of 11 percent of the rent 
charged by the operator.  The tax constitutes a debt owed by the transient to the city, 
which is extinguished only by payment by the operator to the city.  The transient shall 
pay the tax to the operator of the hotel at the time the rent is paid. The operator shall 
enter the tax on hotel records when the rent is collected, if the records are kept on 
the cash accounting basis, and when earned if the records are kept on the accrual 
accounting basis. If rent is paid in installments, a proportionate share of the tax shall 
be paid by the transient to the operator with each installment.  In all cases, the rent 
paid or the charged for occupancy shall exclude the sale of any goods, services, 
commodities, other than the furnishings of rooms, accommodations and space 
occupancy in the mobile home parks or trailer parks.” 

Section 2. This ordinance shall take effect 30 days after adoption. 

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL THIS       DAY OF AUGUST, 2017. 

APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS         DAY OF AUGUST, 2017. 

 

             
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

      
City Manager 

 

ROLL CALL ON ADOPTION YEA NAY ABSENT 

Councilor Brownson 
     Jones 
     Nemlowill 

       Price 
Mayor LaMear 
 

 
 



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017



Agenda Packet 7-17-2017


	CC Agenda 7-17-2017
	Agenda Memo 7-17-2017
	Berney Proclamation
	3b Ebba Wicks Brown Proclamation
	Parks Proclamation
	6a ACC WS June 14 2017 Final
	6b ALB May 23 2017 Final (Approved 06-27-2017)
	6c HR Services
	6d Contract for Tow Services
	6e Regatta Lease
	7a Salary Resolution Wage adjustment
	7b LLicense App Astoria dt Market
	7c Implementing Parks and Rec Dept Funding Scenerios



